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Wednesday, October 5, 2005


‑‑‑ Upon commencing at 1:05 p.m.


MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.


Good afternoon.  Today is the twenty-ninth day of the hearing of applications EB‑2005‑0001 and EB‑2005‑0437 submitted by Enbridge Gas Distribution.  


This afternoon, we will resume the submissions on the filing of the document called the "Program Agreement".  Following that, we hope to finish the cross‑examination on third-party billing.


Just a comment on schedule this afternoon.  After Mr. Howe updates us on which schedules remain in dispute, Accenture and parties in favour of Accenture's position may take one half-hour, in total, to make their submissions.  Then parties opposed to Accenture's motion will have one half-hour in total to make their submissions.  Mr. Howe may have five minutes for reply.


Are there any questions on the process?  Before we begin, are there any preliminary matters?


PRELIMINARY MATTERS:

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, I have one minor matter.  This relates to a minor correction in yesterday's transcript, volume 28, dated October 4th, 2005.  Near the beginning of the document, there's a page marked "exhibits".  I don't think it has a page number, But it just lists the exhibits from yesterday's proceedings, And the very first one is marked in the transcript as Exhibit No. KX28.1.  And I think we have agreed that confidential documents will not bear the "K" letter before them, so that should be changed to simply X28.1.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.  Any other preliminary matters?  


MR. POCH:  Madam Chair, I'm in the position of being here for the DSM, which I gather has some chance of -- just to let the panel know that I understand a number of counsel are available for that, as are witnesses.  We'll stand down and work elsewhere, but we are available, if we reach that later in the afternoon.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Poch.  Any other preliminary matters?  Mr. Howe, can you update us as to where we stand in terms of schedules, then?


PROCEDURAL MATTERS:

MR. HOWE:  Yes, I can, ma'am.  There has been dialogue with respect to the Board's concerns and pursuant to the Board's direction, and I think Mr. Robinson is probably in the best position to provide you with an update in terms of that dialogue.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Robinson.


MR. ROBINSON:  Madam Chairman, I have discussed our position with Peter Thompson.  CWLP, as you know, originally took the position in 2003 that it should redact from the program all references to parties that had nothing to do with Enbridge Gas Distribution.


We understand, as a result of your comments yesterday, that the Board's position was that circumstances of services to others were relevant and that there was no reasonable risk of public disclosure.  And on that basis, while CWLP is not in a position to consent to an order, because we are disclosing information that involves third parties who are not here, we are ‑‑ we have heard your direction and we are ‑‑ while we can't consent, we have prepared ten copies of a document which I have entitled "The Confidential Second Redacted Program Agreement Filed Pursuant to the Board Order of October 5, 2005", on the basis that we are being ordered to produce this.


We have only redacted from this document those parts of the schedules which Mr. Thompson indicated he did not want to see.  So we are in a position to comply with the order of the Board.


I should also say that we have ‑‑ Mr. Howe has prepared a confidentiality agreement, and at the time we deliver this, we would like a new confidentiality agreement signed to protect not only my client, but the other parties who are named herein, and we would also like to have returned all of the -- both the redacted copies and the unredacted copies that have been distributed.


MS. NOWINA:  By redacted copies, do you mean documents that in earlier days in this proceeding have been filed with the Board, what we are calling Exhibit K6.1 and the response to one of the interrogatories?


MR. ROBINSON:  Yes.  They were subject to a confidentiality agreement, but everything is now included ‑‑ at least everything in the program agreement is included here, and rather than having all of these documents floating around, we would hike to get them all back and provide you with this copy.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.


MR. ROBINSON:  I guess I could say I don't really care if the Board keeps one unredacted copy, but there have been things taken out of the copy that you have in accordance with the list that Mr. Thompson gave us yesterday.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Mr. Howe, Ms. Fung, do you have submissions?


MR. HOWE:  I have nothing to add, other than the fact that the undertaking of non‑disclosure is similar to the non‑disclosure undertaking that was signed by parties earlier in this proceeding.


We have just, out of an abundance of caution, included both the redacted and unredacted versions of the program agreement, because there will be people in this room that have had access to both.  So it's virtually the same undertaking, which we would ask be signed as a condition for receiving the document that Mr. Robinson just identified.


MS. NOWINA:  Have the other parties seen this new agreement?


MR. HOWE:  No, ma'am.  I just had it prepared on my way, shortly before coming up here.


MS. NOWINA:  Is it possible for you to distribute copies where you highlighted the change to the document, so the other parties can quickly have a look at it?


MR. HOWE:  I could do that, ma'am, but I don't think it is necessary, because, unlike the earlier undertaking that was signed, which listed a number of different documents ‑ for example, the EnVision document and other confidential information from Mr. Louth, and it included the redacted program agreement ‑ this undertaking only says the redacted and unredacted versions of the program agreement.


MS. NOWINA:  And that is the only change to this document?


MR. HOWE:  Well, I have deleted the other references.


MS. NOWINA:  Right.


MR. HOWE:  This document is in favour of CWLP and Accenture.  The earlier document had been in favour of EGD and others.  But this is - when I say "this", I mean the program agreement - is really CWLP's program agreement.


So the recipients of this undertaking are different than the earlier undertaking.


MS. NOWINA:  I guess I was trying to get at the conditions within the undertaking.


MR. HOWE:  The conditions are the same.


MS. NOWINA:  The conditions are identical?


MR. HOWE:  The conditions are the same, ma'am.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Any other submissions?


MR. HOWE:  I can distribute this now, if you'd like, and let people go ahead and look at it.


MS. NOWINA:  Yes, if you can go ahead and do that.  Ms. Fung, do you have anything?


MS. FUNG:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I have only have one comment, and that relates to a question raised by Mr. Thompson yesterday when he was going through the schedules.  And, in particular, it related to 3.01(ee), and he raised the question whether there was anything omitted from that schedule in the version that was presented to the intervenors yesterday, because it started out with page 2.  


I have now checked the original unredacted copy of the program agreement that I have, and there is no page 1.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Ms. Fung.


MS. FUNG:  Thank you.


MR. SHEPHERD:  Madame Chair, do you wish to hear submissions from the parties on the other side yet, or are you...

     MS. NOWINA:  I was just giving you a moment to get the document, but, yes, I'm ready to hear submissions from the other parties.


MR. SHEPHERD:  I have two brief submissions.


First of all, I do not want to return my redacted version of the program agreement that I currently have until the end of the proceeding, because it has my extensive notes on it, which I plan to refer to in argument and it would be a considerable amount of work for me to move them to a new document.


With respect to the new undertaking of non‑disclosure, the only change appears to be to add the unredacted version of the agreement.  I'm going to hand that back to Mr. Howe now and therefore I don't believe that it's necessary for me to sign anything more.

MR. HOWE:  I'm content with that, ma'am, that's fine.
MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Howe.  Other parties?

MR. WARREN:  Madam Chair, can I ask for two points of clarification.  I apologize I wasn't present for the discussions yesterday afternoon.

This undertaking of non-disclosure is in favour of CustomerWorks Limited Partnership and Accenture Business Services for Utilities Inc.  I wonder if, through you, I could ask for the position of Terasen with respect to this.  Is this intended to protect or to deal with Terasen as well?  Or does Terasen have a separate position on this?
     MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Fung.
     MS. FUNG:  We don't.  To the extent that Terasen is a limited partner in CustomerWorks Limited Partnership, we are content to abide by whatever order is made by this Board, although we obviously remain of the view that the materials relating to Terasen that are contained in the program agreement are irrelevant to this proceeding.  That being said, we're not in a position to object, obviously, to an order from this Board, so, no, we do not require an undertaking from you directly.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.
     MR. WARREN:  Second question is a last mechanical one.  In the last proceeding where there was an undertaking of non-disclosure, the informal arrangement that was struck with Ms. Persad, who was the archangel in charge of ensuring we complied with the undertakings.  The informal arrangement was that we could burn the document, shred them in our office rather than return them.  It was just easier that way to do it and then provide a letter to her.  I'm wondering if I could ask Mr. Robinson and Mr. Howe if that arrangement could obtain in this case.  We would simply shred it and then I would notify them by a letter that that had been done.  Is that satisfactory or to you want the hard copies back?
     MR. HOWE:  I'm content with that arrangement.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Howe.  

Mr. Robinson.
     MR. ROBINSON:  Yes, I'm content.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Ms. DeMarco.

MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair can I just support Mr. Shepherd's position in relation to the return of what is now Exhibit K6.1.  We have also made significant notes in the context of that exhibit that I think would be challenging to have to try to reproduce and quite frankly totally inefficient for clients that not funded to have to do.
     MS. NOWINA:  I assume, Mr. Howe since that was acceptable for Mr. Shepherd it is also acceptable for Ms. DeMarco.
     MR. HOWE:  Indeed.
     MR. DINGWALL:  Madam Chair, I'm looking for a more brief indulgence.  My notations amount to sticky notes which merely have to be transferred from one document to another, but that will take 24 hours.
     MS. NOWINA:  I don't think I have to go back to Mr. Howe --
     MR. HOWE:  That's fine, ma'am.  That's fine.
     MS. NOWINA:  Are there any other submissions?  Thank you very much.  The Board appreciates the cooperation of CWLP, Accenture, and Terasen in this matter.  The unredacted documents, any that are around, will be returned to you immediately.  Is that the request?
     MR. ROBINSON:  Yes.
     MS. NOWINA:  So I would ask that that be done on our first break here today, and that you make count of the documents and ensure you do have them all back.
     MR. HOWE:  Yes, thank you, ma'am.  We have numbered the newly redacted program agreement and so when one of my friends gives us the signed undertaking, subject to the amendments that they were just talking about, we will give them a copy of the redacted agreement.
     MS. NOWINA:  Fine.  Thank you.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair just by way of clarification.  In the event that this is returned, I understood from Mr. Shepherd's submissions that it wasn't necessary to sign the new undertaking.
     MS. NOWINA:  In that case.
     MR. HOWE:  No.  No.  No.  No.  No.  That wasn't what I understood Mr. Shepherd to be saying.
     What Mr. Shepherd is saying is the new undertaking that is in front of my friends now, talks about copies of redacted and unredacted versions of the program agreement.
     Mr. Shepherd, as I understand it, said he's going to return the unredacted version of the program and therefore he would like to amend the undertaking to delete the word "unredacted", which I agreed with.
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Shepherd doesn't seem to agree with that position.
     MR. SHEPHERD:  That is not what I said.  I think the transcript will show that what I said was, since the existing undertaking already refers to the redacted program agreement, it already covers the document and the only addition is unredacted, since I'm giving it back, the new undertaking is not required and I shouldn't have to sign it.
     MR. HOWE:  Well, I didn't understand him to say that.  But I obviously -- it was a failure on my part to pick up on the subtlety.
     This is a newly-redacted document.  The earlier document that was signed by Mr. Shepherd and others back in June was a different document.  That was the 2003 version of the redacted document.  So we're asking that everyone who wants a copy of the newly redacted document, as per the Board order, sign the new undertaking.
     MS. NOWINA:  Yes, I would agree with that, Mr. Shepherd.  It is with different parties that this undertaking is taking place.
     MR. SHEPHERD:  Madam Chair, I don't think that is the case.  I think that these parties are included in the old undertaking; that the old undertaking specifically refers to redacted program agreement, and therefore there is nothing new added from this, except that Mr. Howe gets to say later, when I seek to be relieved of the requirement to return the document, Well, you signed it again on October 5th.  That's the only difference.
     MS. NOWINA:  The redactions are different in this document than they were in the earlier one.
     MR. SHEPHERD:  That's true. 

MS. NOWINA:  So are you going to give back the redacted version and the unredacted version and just keep X6.1?
     MR. SHEPHERD:  The original undertaking was signed in July when one redacted version was filed.  Then another redacted version was filed in August.  No new undertakings were signed because, as my friend said on the record, it was already covered by the old undertaking.  That situation has not changed.
     A new redaction doesn't change that situation.  Unless there is some other change to this document that I haven't identified, I don't have the old one to compare them.  If that's the only change, then it's not necessary to sign a new undertaking and my friends have already admitted that in August.
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Dingwall, you have a point?
     MR. DINGWALL:  Well, I have one comment and one question, Madam Chairman.  My one comment is:  I don't think the record would be helped if there were simple references to unredacted and redacted versions as being all that there are.
     There are redactions as of different dates with different exhibit numbers, and clearly what we're talking about in the undertakings needs to cover that.  But my question then coming out of that is:  I had understood, on the day in which Mr. Dodd was questioned, that the Board was seeking final argument on the basis of what intervenors' responses were to the result of Mr. Dodd's questioning; what we might derive from that in terms of what we would suggest the Board do, as a specific result of that.
     Then, as part of that, do we not need the previous redactions and the subsequent unredacted in order to address that point?
     MS. NOWINA:  Just a moment, please.
     [The Board confers]
     MS. NOWINA:  Frankly, the Board really wishes to dispose of this matter.  I think we've heard all the submissions that we would like to hear.

What we would like to do is that parties may keep the unredacted version, previous unredacted versions ‑‑ sorry.  Redacted, sorry.  Yes.  So the previous redacted versions, and they may get the new redacted version, as formulated yesterday, if they sign the undertaking.  Unredacted, the new undertaking.  Unredacted versions must be returned and all versions, I assume, returned after the proceeding.


MR. HOWE:  Thank you, ma'am.


MS. NOWINA:  Is that clear?


MR. HOWE:  Thank you very much.


MS. NOWINA:  And we need to comment that we feel that that -- Mr. Shepherd signing that undertaking would be without prejudice.


MR. HOWE:  Well, that causes me a concern, ma'am, because if it's without prejudice, it means he's not bound by it.


As I understood the Board's order, people could get a redacted program agreement, pursuant to the Board's order yesterday, in exchange for the undertaking of non‑disclosure.  And really what Mr. Shepherd is asking is, he's got his fingers crossed, because he's saying:  I want to be relieved of this.  And by permitting him to sign the new undertaking without prejudice permits him to get out of it at a later time.


So I think that that is, with respect, inconsistent with the Board's direction yesterday, and I think that's an entirely new issue.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  Let me clarify that for you, Mr. Howe.   What the Board is saying is directly to Mr. Shepherd's point, that if at some future time he decides to bring a motion with respect to this undertaking, as you addressed yesterday, that the execution of this further undertaking would not be a matter that the Board would weigh against him in that particular proceeding.


MR. HOWE:  But in the meantime, he will be bound by the new undertaking?


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  Absolutely.  The suggestion of without prejudice ‑‑ we should have been more clear about that, but the suggestion of without prejudice relates specifically to the issue that Mr. Shepherd raised, in terms of the -- in the course of the motion that he has indicated he intends to bring.


MR. HOWE:  All right.  Well, as long as the Board is saying that he's bound by the undertaking, the new undertaking of non‑disclosure and the old undertaking of non‑disclosure, until such time as the Board rules on his motion, I'm content with that.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  For the record, Mr. Shepherd, you can clarify that?


MR. SHEPHERD:  There is no question that I am bound by these undertakings.  I am, in fact, bound by these undertakings unless the Board relieves me of any part of them.


MR. HOWE:  All right.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  Is that satisfactory, Mr. Howe?


MR. HOWE:  Yes, it is.  Thank you, Mr. Sommerville.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  With that, I think we have finished with this matter.  Thank you very much, everyone.


If there is anyone that wants to be excused now from the proceeding, you may feel free to do that.


MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, just one procedural point.  Will we be entering the new redacted version as an exhibit right now, or will we wait until it is referred to in testimony?  How would you like that to find its way onto the record?


MR. HOWE:  May I speak to that, ma'am?


MS. NOWINA:  Certainly.


MR. HOWE:  That's a very good point.  The document, of course, will be produced and discussed in confidence; in other words, in camera.


MS. NOWINA:  Yes.


MR. HOWE:  So if I may be so bold as to suggest that the document not be actually formally introduced and marked as an exhibit until such time as the Board decides to go in camera to receive it and questions are asked about it.


MS. NOWINA:  I don't think we have to receive it in camera.  Certainly if there is any questions on confidential material, they would have to be dealt with in camera.


MR. HOWE:  Well, ma'am, the problem I have is, if it's marked as an exhibit, it presumably goes on the public record.


MS. NOWINA:  No.  We will mark it as a confidential exhibit.  We have many exhibits in this hearing that have been marked as confidential exhibits.


MR. HOWE:  That would be fine.  Thank you, ma'am.


MS. NOWINA:  So if we can have it now, we will mark it as an exhibit now.


MR. BATTISTA:  That will be marked as Exhibit X29.1.


MR. ROBINSON:  We only made nine copies and the Board wants six of them.  Maybe we'll have to make more of them.


MS. NOWINA:  If we can just have enough to mark it as an exhibit now, we can get extra copies later.


Perhaps, Mr. Battista, in identifying that exhibit, we can say "as redacted on ...", and yesterday's date, I believe, or today's date.


MR. BATTISTA:  That exhibit characterization will include program agreement filed pursuant to Board order and unredacted on October 5, 2005.


MS. NOWINA:  "As redacted on October 5, 2005."  Thank you.

EXHIBIT NO. X29.1:  CONFIDENTIAL PROGRAM AGREEMENT FILED PURSUANT TO THE BOARD ORDER AS REDACTED ON OCTOBER 5, 2005

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Cass, if you can bring your panel up for us to resume third-party billing?


MR. CASS:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  Mr. McGill is here.  We'll locate the other witness and have them here as promptly as we can.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Are we ready to begin?


MS. DeMARCO:  Subject to a couple of seconds of ‑‑


MS. NOWINA:  Ms. DeMarco, when you're ready to begin.


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  We're just waiting for Mr. McGill, as well.


MS. NOWINA:  Oh, we do need Mr. McGill as well, yes. 


ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION INC. PANEL 20; RESUMED:


KERRY LAKATOS-HAYWARD; Previously Sworn


STEPHEN MCGILL; Previously Sworn

CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. DeMARCO:
MS. DeMARCO:  So welcome back, panel.  I'm not going to say to “As the World Turns” but it feels like it at this point.  

Where we left off yesterday was in relation to the -- your evidence on third-party access to the bill and we were discussing the second to four main areas that I want to cover and that is in relation to the company's relationship with Direct Energy.
     On that issue, we had established, in relation to Exhibit K27.5 -- do you have that exhibit in front of you?
     MR. McGILL:  Is that in your book?
     MS. DeMARCO:  No.  It's the -- 
     MR. McGILL:  Oh, that.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  We have that.  Thank you.
     MS. DeMARCO:  It's the Direct Energy Essential Home Services pamphlet.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Just to try to put us exactly back where were yesterday, I think I had asked you for context to have open tab 1 of my materials, which is the web of relationships.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And then we were chatting specifically about K27.5, which is Direct Energy Essential Home Services billing insert that Mr. Dingwall had introduced into evidence.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So we're all on the same page at this point.
     MR. McGILL:  I believe so.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So we had established yesterday two things:  Number 1, that Direct Energy Essential Home Services logo appeared on the page of that insert where the house was on the right-hand side.

MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Secondly, that Direct is indicating to its customers that the Enbridge name is used under license from Enbridge Inc.; that's correct?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes, yes.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Yes.  Subject to the transcript record of yesterday.  In that regard, I just also wanted to add that it was brought to my attention that on the page, in the box directly below the house that shows the Enbridge bill and the Direct Energy, I have been informed that, again, to make sure that it is clear to our customers the distinction between the two companies, we had requested that the bill be blurred a little bit so, again, it's just really highlighting on the Direct Energy Essential Home Services, that again, we wanted to make it very clear to customers that there is a distinction between the two customers.  So I have been advised that we asked for that change, and obviously it looks like that was -- that request was adhered to.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Let me just follow up on that.  So you did ask for changes in relation to this pamphlet?
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Absolutely.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Okay.  Can I have you turn back over, then, onto that front page where direct is telling its customers the Enbridge name is used under license from Enbridge Inc.  Did you ask for a request -- did you request a change to that sentence?
     MR. HOAKEN:  I'm sorry, could I raise a point?  I don't mean to interrupt my friend.  She referred to it on several occasions to be the front page. I don't know that anything turns on it, but this is, of course, an insert that goes in on a bill envelope and it is it a multi-panelled document which is somewhat misleading in the form that we have it, and Mr. Dingwall was good enough to bring the original.  I think it would be helpful to have that entered into evidence, because it gives a clear depiction of the context in which these statements are appearing.  That page that my friend has just referred to, for example, is in fact on the back page.  
     MS. NOWINA:  Do we need to have it entered into evidence or can we just not accept that it is on the back page if Ms. DeMarco accepts that?
     MR. HOAKEN:  Well, it's just there have been several references which are now in the transcript from yesterday that characterize where this information is obtained.  I'm not suggesting for a moment that this is the most important point the Board is going to have to deal with but for the sake of the completeness and accuracy of the record I was suggesting it go in as an exhibit.  

MR. McGILL:  Another comment with respect to --
     MS. DeMARCO:  One second, Mr. McGill, if I can ask you for us to resolve this issue before we ...
     MS. NOWINA:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, if I can speak to that.  I can tell you there is no art in me referring to the front page or the back page specifically.
     When I refer to the front page, is in Exhibit K27.5, the page with the house on the right-hand side.  And to the extent that my friend has any qualifications or concerns about me referring to it, to the front page, I have no problem with those being duly noted for the record.  
     MS. NOWINA:  We can do that, Mr. Hoaken.  I think we all understood that it was one of those folding things that you put in -- bill stuffers that you put in envelopes, and that the reference was so the witnesses could understand which side of the document we were talking to.
     I really hate to clutter the record with another exhibit of the same document, that when people refer to it, they will have to get a folded document to understand what -- how it is different from this one.
     MR. HOAKEN:  Yes, I certainly understand the Board's reluctance to add another document to the record if it's not, strictly speaking, necessary.  

Could I suggest, simply, that with the permission of my friend, Mr. Dingwall - whose document this actually is - that we provide it to Board Staff.  Then in the event that anyone wants to look at it, or if it's going to be presented to the panel, it's available for that purpose.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair, that is not acceptable to me either.  It's in the record or it's not as opposed to having it somewhere out there --
     MR. HOAKEN:  Well, it's out there right now; it's sitting on this desk.  I'm trying to facilitate so if there is any question -- you said there is no art when you're referring to the front of the document or back of the document.  I'm simply suggesting so it is clear, yes, we all understood it was a multi-panelled document but I was saying simply that the questions asked suggested that there might be some significance to where these statements were placed.  If I'm wrong in that, then that's fine.
     But I simply think it would be of assistance if the Board has decided it shouldn't form part of the formal record, that it be available to all of us if the need arises in this case.
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Hoaken, I do not see the need to do that.  If anybody wants to take the document that has been filed and fold it in -- on three folds, it will look like the one you had, and then we will know what we've got.
     MR. DINGWALL:  Perhaps Mr. Hoaken can, off-line, give those of us who require instructions on how to fold the document.
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Dingwall, let's keep it civil. 

Ms. DeMarco.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, if I might regress for a moment.  I had given Mr. Warren an undertaking that I would be less than one hour and I might have to resile from that undertaking to Mr. Warren.
     In relation to the statement here, you indicated that you changed -- made changes or caused changes to be made to this record -- to this insert; is that right?
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  That's correct.  We were advised that we made that request of Direct Energy to, again, blur out the Enbridge bill and, again, just so that there is greater clarity on the Direct Energy charges.

MS. DeMARCO:  And you didn't ask that the statement "the Enbridge name is used under license from Enbridge Inc." be changed; is that correct?


MR. McGILL:  That's correct, but I did follow up on that statement with our in-house legal counsel, and it has been confirmed to me that there is no licence arrangement in place between Enbridge Inc. or any other Enbridge company, apart from the licence granted to CWLP that enables CWLP to use the Enbridge trademarks on the joint bill.


So there is no licence arrangement for the use of the Enbridge name granted to Direct Energy by Enbridge.


MS. DeMARCO:  Despite the fact that this statement says there is?


MR. McGILL:  Well, it says that there is a licence, and there is a licence via the CWLP arrangement, and “to Enbridge” is in the context of the bill.


So although it's not direct and perhaps not as specific as it could be, I think the implication is that there is a licence arrangement in place.


MS. DeMARCO:  Okay.  Just to be clear here, a customer is supposed to infer that from the statement?


MR. McGILL:  No.  I think I said yesterday that we believe that it's better that the statement ‑‑ a statement of that type is there, contained in the document like this, rather than remaining silent on the point.


MS. DeMARCO:  So indicating that the licence comes from Enbridge Inc. is better than having an accurate statement to the effect of ‑‑


 MR. McGILL:  Well, it's better than having no statement at all.  I believe so, yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  That's your opinion.  I'll leave it there.


I want to ask you a few questions about the original relationship between the two, being EI and ESI, and how that was modified during the course of the term.


As I understand it, there was a change in the terms and conditions of the relationship to allow Direct's logo to appear directly on the bill; is that correct?


MR. McGILL:  I'm not sure if there was any contractual change.  The addition of the logos ‑ and that was both the Enbridge Gas Distribution logo and the Direct Energy logo ‑ were added to the bill at the same time.  That was something that was put in place by CWLP on behalf of both of those entities at the same time.


MS. DeMARCO:  When did that happen, Mr. McGill?


MR. McGILL:  I believe it became effective in April of 2005.


MS. DeMARCO:  So that was a few months ago?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, several months ago.


MS. DeMARCO:  And was Enbridge Gas Distribution consulted on that?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, with respect to the placement of each entity's charges on the bill, the placements of the logo on the bill, the size of the logo, the heavy lines that are used to separate the charges of Direct Energy and Enbridge Gas Distribution on the bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  So when Enbridge was consulted -- Enbridge Gas Distribution was consulted on that, did Enbridge Gas Distribution object to the inclusion of Direct Energy's logo on the gas bill?


MR. McGILL:  No.  We believed it was helpful to better delineate and separate the charges of Direct Energy from those of Enbridge Gas Distribution, as compared to the way the bill appeared prior to that change.


MS. DeMARCO:  And is that logo exclusive to Direct?


MR. McGILL:  Well, given that Direct has exclusive access to the bill with respect to non‑gas commodity, yes.  And I think I indicated yesterday that we have had some preliminary discussions with some of the gas marketers in the past, with respect to adding their logos to the agent billing collection line items on the bill, and that's something, based on being able to mount a positive business case, that we would be prepared to discuss and go forward with at some point in the future.


MS. DeMARCO:  And you ‑‑


MR. McGILL:  As part of the agent billing collection service.


MS. DeMARCO:  And you indicated that you don't know whether that agreement to allow the logo on was written or not; is that fair?


MR. McGILL:  I don't know, no.  I don't believe it constituted any kind of amendment to the client services agreement that Enbridge Gas Distribution has with Direct ‑‑ pardon me, with CWLP.


MS. DeMARCO:  And so you don't know the term of that logo agreement?


MR. McGILL:  No.  I think that arrangement would stay in place until the end of the customer care contract of the CSA between Enbridge Gas Distribution and CWLP.


MS. DeMARCO:  Which contract?  Is that the December 31st, 2005 contract?


MR. McGILL:  That's the contract that will come to an end December 31st of 2006.


MS. DeMARCO:  But you don't know that?


MR. McGILL:  Well, that -- well, I know that that's when that contract has to either be renewed and extended, or replaced with a service from another customer care service provider, and I presume that if that was to take place, then there may be changes in the format of the bill as a result of that.


MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, Mr. McGill, I haven't been precise enough.  The agreement regarding the logo, do you know precisely when that term of the logo use or access on the bill ends?


MR. McGILL:  For Enbridge Gas Distribution?


MS. DeMARCO:  For Direct Energy.  How long does Direct Energy's logo ‑‑


 MR. McGILL:  I haven't seen Direct's contracts with CWLP, but I would assume that that would remain the case until the bill is either redesigned or Direct takes its business to another customer care provider.


MS. DeMARCO:  So if that's the case, that would extend beyond the term of the December 31st, 2005 agreement?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, given that it's my understanding that there is a new arrangement in place between Direct and CWLP beginning January 2006.


MS. DeMARCO:  So in no way, shape or form did CWLP tender or seek interest in logo access to the bill at the time it granted Direct Energy logo access to the bill?


MR. McGILL:  No.  And I don't believe they were in a position to do that, given that they're operating under a non‑compete with Accenture Business Services and that Direct's access to the bill is exclusive, at least to the end of this year.


MS. DeMARCO:  So part of that non‑compete, which we've asked you to seek to produce ‑‑


 MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  ‑‑ includes a term or condition related to logo access?


MR. McGILL:  Well, it pertains to access to the bill.  Enbridge isn't in a position to conduct a business that would be in competition to the businesses that were acquired by Direct Energy in 2002 until after this May.  Presumably after that, then Enbridge would be in a position to add parties to the bill, and, based on what those parties contract for, there may or may not be logos associated with those line items on the bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  So I don't hear clearly that there is a specific term related to logo access; is that correct?


MR. McGILL:  No.  I don't think logos were even contemplated at the time of the sale of ESI.


 MS. DeMARCO:  Do you know, Mr. McGill, if Direct Energy paid any additional funds to CWLP to have its logo on the bill as of April 1st, 2005?


MR. McGILL:  I believe they did, but I don't know what those amounts would be.


MS. DeMARCO:  So you don't know the quantity of ‑‑


MR. McGILL:  No.  That's between Direct Energy and CWLP.


MS. DeMARCO:  How, if at all, were those additional amounts paid to CWLP reflected in the costs that EGD pays to CWLP?


MR. McGILL:  They weren't reflected in the amounts paid by EGD to CWLP.  They had nothing to do with Enbridge Gas Distribution.


MS. DeMARCO:  So customers didn't benefit -- ratepayers didn't benefit from the additional amounts paid by Direct Energy for having their logo on the gas bill?


MR. McGILL:  No, nor would customers benefit from additional amounts paid to Direct Energy to IBM for buying new laptops.  I don't understand what it's got to do with Enbridge Gas Distribution.


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  And certainly the benefit to ratepayers is through the shared bill, so to the extent that the bill, you know, meets Direct's needs, I would assume that they would make arrangements with CWLP in that regard.  But that's -- the benefit to the ratepayer is through the shared bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  And, presumably, given that the bill could accommodate Direct Energy's logo, it could definitely accommodate another entity, not an additional entity, but instead of Direct Energy, another entity's logo.  Is that fair to say?


MR. McGILL:  In substitution of Direct Energy's entire line item on the bill?
     MS. DeMARCO:  I'm speaking specifically about the logo.
     MR. McGILL:  Well, given that the billing system at this point in time doesn't have the capability to add another party to the Enbridge bill, the billing system wouldn't have the capability to add another logo to the bill, and even if it did, it wouldn't make any sense to add the logo of another party to the bill, unless there were billable items contained on that bill.
     So I don't understand what value that would be.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Specific to the practicalities that you spoke of in the past, you said practically as it challenging to add a logo on the bill, presumably --
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  -- if you could add one logo, you could just as easily have added someone else's logo, practically, physically.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  But what I'm saying is, is that I don't think it would make any sense to add logos to the bill without billable items pertaining to the entities that were the owners of those trademarks or logos.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Again, the addition of the logo is in the part of the bill and references billable items.  So it is not a bill format where you see random logos of other parties interspersed on the bill.  They are referencing billable items.  So I think we're a little bit confused what specifically you're trying to ask us here.  Perhaps you could clarify and we could be more helpful.
     MS. DeMARCO:  My questions are specific to the physical capability to add a logo.  I understand your answers in that regard.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Physically, I understand you have indicated it is capable but your answers relate to the advisability of that; is that fair to say?
     MR. McGILL:  Well, and the purpose of the bill.
     The bill isn't designed to be a marketing device.  It's designed to be a device to convey charges to customers.  And the things that have been done to the bill have been done in order to better distinguish the charges of Direct Energy from those of Enbridge Gas Distribution.  And that included the addition of the logos for both of those parties, not just Direct Energy.
     And to extend the -- or to add more logos to the bill without adding billable items for other parties would strictly be using the bill as a marketing device.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Just further on that point, as Mr. McGill indicated earlier, if there was a business case with respect to adding logos for marketers under the ABC program, that is certainly something that would be contemplated.
     MR. McGILL:  We would be willing to pursue.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I want to ask you specifically about the revenue associated with the logo, just for a moment.
     Do I understand, as a practical matter, what we now have entered into evidence as -- help me here -- X29.1, Madam Chair, I'm not speaking to anything within the document in terms of numbers, but in terms of what might or might not be accurate or need to be updated.
     So I'm in your hands as to whether or not you need me to go in camera here.
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Cass?  Do you have a view of that?  Or do the witnesses have --
     MR. CASS:  Sorry, I didn't understand what Ms. DeMarco said, Madam Chair.  If she has questions about Exhibit 29.1, I assume that they are in camera matters.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Please be advised that I'm not privy to that confidential information.
     MS. NOWINA:  That makes it difficult, Ms. DeMarco.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Let me see if I can rephrase the question to get around the issue.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I understand that a number of the parameters, regarding the relationship between CWLP and its clients, are included in the master program agreement; is that fair?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  There are references to CWLP's clients at the time that CWLP entered into the program agreement with Accenture.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And is it fair to say, as a result of the logo changes on April 1st of 2005, through which CWLP receives additional revenues through Direct Energy, the numbers in that program agreement would have to be updated to reflect those additional revenues; is that fair?
     MR. McGILL:  Well, one, I don't believe there has been any update to numbers in the program agreement.  The numbers in the program agreement were forecasts that were in place at the time, and they originated back in 2001.
     So my understanding is that there's been no change to those numbers or updates for things that may have transpired from the time the program agreement is signed.
     With respect to what Direct may or may not be paying on an ongoing basis for having the logo on the bill, I can't speak to that, because I'm not privy to the details of the contracts that Direct has with CWLP.
     I can tell you that on an ongoing basis there is no additional cost to Enbridge Gas Distribution for having the Enbridge Gas Distribution logo on the bill.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And you've told us there is no additional savings to Enbridge Gas Distribution as well; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  Not beyond the savings generated by sharing the bill that we've already spoken to.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Right.  And so specifically, we're talking about forecasts in the program agreement, actuals  -- the actual revenue received by CWLP will be affected by the additional revenue coming in through the Direct Energy logo.
     MR. McGILL:  It may or may not.  I don't know what the terms and conditions are between Direct Energy and CWLP.  With respect to the logo or any other matter.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So we'll leave it that there is additional revenue flowing to CWLP.
     MR. McGILL:  There may.  There may not be.  I don't know.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, Mr. McGill.  I understood your answer to be that there was revenue associated with that.  You didn't know the amount.  

MR. McGILL:  I know at the time that the logos were added to the bill, there was an initial up-front cost in making that change to the billing system.  

And I believe, I've been advised that Direct Energy paid something to CWLP to have that done.
     I don't know how much that amount was and I don't know whether or not there are any ongoing charges pertaining to that that are paid by Direct to CWLP.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I understand your distinction now, Mr. McGill.  It could have been a one-time fee?
     MR. McGILL:  It may have.  It may not be.  I don't know.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you.  Now, I would like to ask you specifically about the evolution of the relationship.
     My friend, Mr. Hoaken, indicated that as of either December or May 2006, the relationship between Direct and EGD no longer exists.
     So if I can ask you to turn to tab 1 of our book of materials.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Sorry.  Did you say a relationship between Direct and EGD or is that Direct and Enbridge?
     MS. DeMARCO:  Direct and Enbridge Inc.  If I misspoke, I'm sorry about that.  Specifically at the transcript volume 27, page 15.
     MS. NOWINA:  What's your reference, Ms. DeMarco?
     MS. DeMARCO:  Sorry.  Transcript volume 27, page 15.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes, we have the page.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Starting at line 1.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Mr. Hoaken indicates:

“After the expiry of the undertakings in May

2006, there's no future basis to draw that line.

 There will be, therefore, no basis to draw that

line.”  

That line we're talking about, Mr. McGill is between Direct Energy and EI; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  What I do understand, however, is that there is a new line to be drawn; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  No, I don't believe that is correct.  As far as I know, there has been no -- we already have a line in the diagram between CWLP and Direct Energy.
     The only thing that I am aware of that has changed between EI and Direct Energy is that EI advised Direct Energy as to what its rights going forward would be to access the Enbridge bill after December 31st of this year.
     And what I've been advised is, is that that notice to Direct Energy was that they would have access to the Enbridge bill for as long as they were a client of CWLP for the provision of billing services, and that that access to the Enbridge bill would no longer be exclusive access after December 31st of 2005.


So if that notice to Direct Energy constitutes a line on your chart, then we could draw a new line.  But I have been advised that that's the extent of any changes between EI and Direct Energy that pertain to the new CWLP/Direct Energy contract that would come into effect this January, this coming January.


MS. DeMARCO:  So what you're indicating is there's some understanding between Direct Energy and EI regarding ongoing access to the bill?


MR. McGILL:  That's -- yes.  That's what I'm ‑‑


MS. DeMARCO:  That takes the form of a written notice?


MR. McGILL:  I believe there is some kind of written notice, yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  And that written notice would address or be in the same subject area as the undertakings?


MR. McGILL:  Well, I don't believe it would be an undertaking to the original sale transaction, no.


I believe it's just a notice to Direct outlining what constitutes, or what the requirements are for them to maintain access to the Enbridge bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  So more precisely, my question was not whether it constitutes an undertaking, but whether it relates to the undertakings relating to third-party access to the bill; is that correct?


MR. McGILL:  I think the original undertaking with respect to access to the Enbridge bill expires the end of this year.


This is something that, perhaps, would replace that undertaking.  But, as far as I know, it was in the form of a written notice to Direct Energy.  


 MS. DeMARCO:  So, first of all, let me clarify that the line is replaced by the notice?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  And the notice pertains to access?


MR. McGILL:  It pertains to access to the Enbridge bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  Mr. McGill, can you undertake to provide that written notice, in addition to the undertakings that you're seeking to provide, as well?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, I can.  Just to be clear, I think it would be misleading to continue to have that line labelled as a trademark or licence agreement.  I don't think it really constitutes that.


MS. DeMARCO:  In the same way that the Direct billing insert is misleading?


MR. McGILL:  I don't think the Direct billing insert is misleading.  It is very clear with respect to Direct's position on the Enbridge bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  We'll leave that one.


MR. BATTISTA:  Is that an undertaking?  That will be undertaking J29.1.

UNDERTAKING NO. J29.1:  TO PRODUCE WRITTEN NOTICE BETWEEN DIRECT ENERGY AND ENBRIDGE INC. REGARDING ONGOING ACCESS TO THE BILL

MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you.


MR. HOAKEN:  I'm sorry, just for the record, can I clarify what specifically the undertaking was?  The undertaking was that Mr. McGill was going to attempt to find and produce the written notice that he referred to from EI to DE?


MR. McGILL:  See, again, this is something that Enbridge Gas Distribution isn't directly party to.  I have been advised that such a document exists and I will endeavour to find it.


MS. NOWINA:  Is that the nature of the document, Ms. DeMarco?


MS. DeMARCO:  My understanding of Mr. McGill's response on the record was that he would provide the notice.


MR. HOAKEN:  Well, it's a notice -- in fairness, I think, it is clear from his evidence it's a notice that was given by EI, not the regulated utility.


MS. NOWINA:  I believe Mr. McGill said he would attempt to get the document for us.


MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


MS. NOWINA:  On a best-efforts basis, I assume.


MR. McGILL:  I haven't seen the document.  EGD isn't a party to the document.  I will request a copy of the document be provided.


MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  We're fine with proceeding on that basis.


Ms. Lakatos‑Hayward, can I ask you to turn to the transcript, volume 26 at page 163?

     MS. NOWINA:  What was the page, Ms. DeMarco?


MS. DeMARCO:  163, starting at line 12.


If I understand your direct evidence here, although you don't specifically mention Direct Energy, what I understand you to be speaking about is a new three‑year relationship between Direct Energy and CustomerWorks Limited Partnership; is that fair?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  We're referring to the interrogatory response that is referenced there, Exhibit I, tab 26, schedule 2.


MS. DeMARCO:  And we do have that interrogatory in our book of materials at tab 4, and that's in relation to the status between Direct Energy and CustomerWorks Limited Partnership; is that fair?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  That is what I was advised as to the status of the negotiation at the time the interrogatory response was written.


MS. DeMARCO:  So your evidence there is that, Ms. Lakatos‑Hayward, they have entered into a new three‑year term relationship, Direct Energy and CustomerWorks Limited Partnership?


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  Yes.  We have been advised that there is that agreement; that it's on a non‑exclusive basis.  But, again, as EGD is not a party to that, we do not ‑‑ we're not aware of any terms and conditions.


MS. DeMARCO:  Mr. McGill, in response to Mr. Dingwall, I believe that you seemed to indicate that it was a two‑year agreement.


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  Since the interrogatory response was prepared, I have been advised that Direct and CWLP had entered into a new agreement, which becomes effective January 2006, and that I was advised that the term of that agreement is for two years, with a third option.


MS. DeMARCO:  So that would be a clarification to your direct evidence, Ms. Lakatos‑Hayward?


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  That's correct.


MS. DeMARCO:  Does that agreement include the logo appearing on the bill?


MR. McGILL:  I've never seen that agreement, but I haven't been advised that the logo is going to be removed from the bill, so I presume the intent is that it will stay.


MS. DeMARCO:  Anywhere in that arrangement, are you aware of any restrictions, exclusions, non‑competes or other provisions that might limit third-party access to the bill?


MR. McGILL:  Not with respect to the arrangement between Direct Energy and CWLP.  I have not been advised of any conditions that may be associated with that arrangement that would limit Enbridge from adding additional parties to the Enbridge bill after May of 2006.


MS. DeMARCO:  I think my question was a bit broader than that.  Not just in relation to CWLP, but in relation to the notice with EI, are there any restrictions, exclusions in any way, shape or form to bill access?


MR. McGILL:  No.  The purpose of everything that has been done with respect to bill access, as it pertains to the continued arrangement between CWLP and Direct, has been designed to support access to the bill by additional parties.


MS. DeMARCO:  Just as a point of clarification, you spoke of a continued relationship.  Is this a continuing agreement, or is this a renewal, or is this a new agreement?


MR. McGILL:  Between Direct and CWLP?


MS. DeMARCO:  Yes.


MR. McGILL:  I don't know.  All I know is that it is two years with a third year option.  That's all I know.  I don't know what the renewal or noticing provisions are in that agreement.


MS. DeMARCO:  So as far as you know, there is no reason to expect that anything in that relationship should limit access, whether between ‑‑


MR. McGILL:  No, I have not been advised of anything.  And, in fact, all of our discussions with EI and CWLP, with respect to that, we're making it clear that Enbridge Gas Distribution wanted to make sure that we would be able -- Enbridge would be able to add parties to the bill after May of 2006, subject to practical limitations and being able to put together positive business cases that would support that.


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  And in that regard, in the same transcript reference, just continuing down on page 163, we do speak about that we are encouraging other channel partners to engage CWLP, and we are aware that there have been informal discussions taking place.  But, again, because we're not privy, we don't know how advanced those are.


But we believe that it's in EGD's and our customers' best interest to, for channel partners to gain access to the bill and, subject to the practical limitations, we'll do everything that we can to help facilitate that.
     MS. DeMARCO:  In entering into that new relationship, is it fair to say that neither Enbridge nor CWLP entered into a RFI, RFP or otherwise web-posted the opportunity?
     MR. McGILL:  No.  I'm not aware of any solicitation for additional clients that CWLP may have made.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  But on the same token, there is no limitation from other parties directly contacting CWLP.  It's a question of what's the most effective way to communicate.  We're open for business.  So, you know, RFP or RFI is certainly not the only way to do that.
     MR. McGILL:  I'm aware that Mr. Dingwall's client has approached CWLP with respect to this matter.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Certainly in terms of maximizing the exposure of this opportunity and ensuring that ratepayers have the maximal value from CWLP's relationship, there wasn't a tender, was there?  
     MR. McGILL:  No, there wasn't.  But I don't know -- I have never heard of a potential service provider tendering to acquire business.  I've heard of marketing and sales efforts, but I don't know how a RFP or a tender would be used in that circumstance.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Mr. McGill or Ms. Lakatos-Hayward, in the event that Direct Energy is, hypothetically, precluded from using its logo on Enbridge's bill, would EGD be subject to any penalties?
     MR. McGILL:  Not that I'm aware of, no.
     MS. DeMARCO:  In the event that the Board precludes EGD sharing a bill, including Direct Energy's charges, would there be any penalties that EGD would be subject to?
     MR. McGILL:  I don't believe that there –-

[Witness panel confer]
     MR. McGILL:  I don't believe there would be any contractual penalties, but EGD would lose the benefit of approximately a million dollars annual saving.  And that we would be in a position where, once we got through the actual year in question where that had to be implemented, we would be seeking to recover those additional costs in rates.  So it would be very detrimental to ratepayers.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Now, in fairness, your past responses there indicated that any entity could share the bill; that's correct?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  And as long as that resulted in a greater number of shared bills than we have today, there would be an incremental benefit to EGD.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Not necessarily a greater number of shared bills, but also would it be fair to say a higher price paid for those -- each shared bill and flow through to ratepayers.  That would also result in additional ratepayer benefit, would it not?
     MR. McGILL:  I don't understand the question.  When you say "higher price".
     I think -- what our contract says is that we pay half the bill production costs for a shared bill.  So if there were three parties on the bill, we would still pay 50 percent of that cost.
     So the way that EGD would benefit is that, if we incrementally create more shared bills somehow by CWLP adding parties to the bill.  So this would have to be situations where it's a stand-alone Enbridge bill today, where there is no Direct Energy charges on it, and then if we were to add another party to the bill and that gave rise to an additional shared bill, then EGD would benefit from that, under the terms of its existing arrangement with CWLP.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So if I understand correctly, then, on this point, regardless of how much money CWLP is making for access to the bill --
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  -- regardless of how much money CWLP is making for logo on the bill, regardless of how many customers CWLP has, ratepayers get the same flat-fee shared benefit.
     MR. McGILL:  I wouldn't agree with that.  What I've said is if there are more shared bills, there will be a greater ratepayer benefit.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So bill number, not revenue is the only determinative factor.
     MR. McGILL:  No.  EGD is not in the billing business.  EGD bills as a business function that's required in order to operate its business.  EGD is not a billing services provider apart from the ABC-T service, which now is a requirement of the gas distribution rule, and it's known there as a distributor-consolidated billing.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And EGD's benefits, as a result of outsourcing the function, are limited to the number of bills shared; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  Well, some of the -- yes.  The benefit, one of the benefits of the outsourcing is the sharing of the bill.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you.  I would like to move on now to look at the format and presentation of the bill.  In that regard, I'm going to ask you to turn to tab number 2 of our book of materials at Exhibit K26.2, and the addendum K27.7, which is the back page of that bill that was added.
     MR. McGILL:  I don't have the addendum.  I don't think either of us does.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I can...     

MR. McGILL:  We have one copy now.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Thank you.  We're good.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So is it fair to say that this is a copy of a gas bill?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I believe this is a copy of the reverse side of the Enbridge bill.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Sorry.  Both portions taken together?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And so, Mr. McGill, when your customer support department gets those elevated complaints, they're calling about their gas bill; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  We get complaints with respect to the Enbridge bill, yes, and the Enbridge Gas Distribution charges on that bill.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Physically this is what customers are calling about, I have a problem with my gas bill?
     MR. McGILL:  Or they don't understand the charges, or the way those charges have been depicted on the gas bill.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Yes.  Certainly under the Direct Energy, there are distinct phone numbers.  So if the customer has a complaint or a question about those charges, they're being directed to call that number.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So in calling about the gas bill, can I ask you to acknowledge that at the top of the bill, there's the Enbridge logo?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Subject to check, would you agree with me that that's a colour logo?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  That's at the top centre of the bill.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  That's the logo for Enbridge Gas Distribution?
     MR. McGILL:  Enbridge Gas Distribution has the right to use the Enbridge logo under a trademark and licensing arrangement that Enbridge Gas Distribution has with Enbridge Inc.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So that's its brand, that's Enbridge Gas Distribution's brand?
     MR. McGILL:  It's the Enbridge brand.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So that's all of the Enbridge companies’ brand?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I believe all of the Enbridge companies display the Enbridge trademark.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So Enbridge Inc., CWLP, Enbridge Gas Distribution?
     MR. McGILL:  Pipeline companies, the international development business.  There is a number of companies they use.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So just below that, about the top third of the page, on the left-hand side, would you agree with me that you've got Direct Energy's logo?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And that's the general logo for Direct Energy?  Yes?
     MR. McGILL:  As far as I know it is.  I'm not all that familiar with Direct Energy's logos.
     MS. DeMARCO:  That's not Direct Energy Essential Home Services' logo, is it?
     MR. McGILL:  Well, what it says just to the right of the Direct Energy logo is Essential Home Services, so whether it constitutes part of their logo or not, it's part of the name, or the trade name they operate under, and it's displayed on the bill.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Can I ask you to turn back to Exhibit K27.5.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  And on the page with the house on the right-hand corner, whichever portion of the fold-up in is, you will see in the middle you've got Direct Energy Essential Home Services logo.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  That is quite distinct from what we see on the Enbridge bill, isn’t it?


MR. McGILL:  The difference is the words “Essential Home Services” appear to the right of the Direct Energy graphic logo, if you will, and in the pamphlet or the bill insert, it appears below the words “Direct Energy.”


MR. McGILL:  I believe the reason for that was just a physical limitation in what could be printed on the bill.


MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  As far as I can tell, the logos are the same, just the placement of the words --


MR. McGILL:  Just the placement of the words is similar with respect to the Enbridge logo beneath that, that the words "Enbridge Gas Distribution" appear to the right of that logo, and my understanding is the reason it was done that way was simply a technical issue with respect to making the changes in the computer system.  There was only a certain amount of area on the bill that could be used for the graphic.  Both logos take up exactly the same square -- number of square inches or centimetres, whatever, on the document.


MS. DeMARCO:  Fair to say, though, we have a distinct difference between the actual Direct logo, what's on the bill, and Direct Energy Essential Home Services appearing immediately under; correct?


MR. McGILL:  I wouldn't say it's a distinct difference, no.  All the components of the Direct Energy logo appear on the bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  At some point, but not necessarily in the logo; is that fair?


MR. McGILL:  They don't appear in exactly the same format as on the bill insert; I would agree with that, but all the elements of the Direct Energy logo appear on the bill and they appear as close -- in as close proximity to each other as was practically possible.


MS. DeMARCO:  And so immediately below the Direct Energy logo, we've got Enbridge's logo again; is that right?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  And that specific logo pertains to Enbridge Gas Distribution in this case?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  So it's reasonable for a person to assume that that Enbridge logo appears to apply to the Gas Distribution business?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  Can you show me where on the bill, if anywhere, Enbridge Inc. is mentioned.


MR. McGILL:  Enbridge Inc. I don't believe is mentioned on the bill.  There are no charges of Enbridge Inc. conveyed on the bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  Can you show me where on the bill CWLP is referenced?


MR. McGILL:  Again, CWLP is the producer of the bill.  It bills no charges on the document.  There's no reason to have CWLP's name appear on the bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  Can you show me where on the bill it specifically indicates that Direct Energy and Enbridge are not affiliated?


MR. McGILL:  I don't know if those specific words appear on the bill.  I don't think they do, but if you look at the notice at the bottom of the front page of the bill, which appears after the billing dates, what's indicated there is that the indicated items are billed on behalf of Direct Energy Essential Home Services, a subsidiary of Centrica Canada Limited, and all other items are billed on behalf of Enbridge Gas Distribution, unless otherwise indicated.  


And it goes on to indicate that Enbridge Gas Distribution rates are approved by the Ontario Energy Board, and then identifies separate PST numbers for both Enbridge Gas Distribution and Direct Energy, and that message is consistent with the message that Ontario Energy Board directed the company to place on the bill as a result of the HVAC complaint in 2000. 


So we have done nothing but abide by the directive of the Board in how this has been presented on the bill.


MS. DeMARCO:  So I take it your response is:  Nowhere on the bill does it indicate that they are not affiliated?


MR. McGILL:  Not specifically, no.


MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you.  I would like to move on to my last line of questioning, which is surrounding Enbridge Gas Distribution's due diligence relating to billing and shared bills in the context of the proposed CIS.


Mr. Dingwall covered a number of my questions here, as did Mr. Thompson, so I would like to just take you through and obtain some clarifications through the record, if I might.


Can I ask you to turn to CCC Interrogatory No. 61, which is found at tab 6 of my book of materials?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  And there CCC is asking you to discuss potential implications arising if all marketers were given access to EGD's bills, or the same access as Direct Energy.  And in your last paragraph of the response on that first page, you indicate that Enbridge Gas Distribution has not done an assessment of the revenue and cost impacts of allowing access to the Enbridge bill to other entities.


MR. McGILL:  That's correct.


MS. DeMARCO:  So you have not done a cost-benefit analysis?


MR. McGILL:  No, because I don't think there would be any cost to Enbridge Gas Distribution under the terms of its agreement with CWLP, and any benefit that flows from the creation of additional shared bills will come to Enbridge Gas Distribution through the terms of that contract.  So I don't even think it's necessary for Enbridge Gas Distribution to be doing a cost benefit with respect to this.


MS. DeMARCO:  So I understood, then, Ms. Lakatos-Hayward, that you'd indicated that the costs were in the range of 3.5 million.  I think the transcript reference is volume 26, page 162, line 24.


MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  That's correct.


MS. DeMARCO:  Just to be clear here, the costs related to adding additional parties on the bill are an assumption.  And if you recall in our evidence in‑chief, we have indicated that if such a financing program were offered due to the undertakings currently in place, this would have to be done through an Enbridge affiliate.


So the costs being borne, the 3.5 million, the assumption is that that would have to be borne by the related entity.


MR. McGILL:  It would be the party contracting to provide the billing service that would, I presume, need and want to do a business case or a cost benefit analysis to support making that $3.5 million investment.


MS. DeMARCO:  So, in fairness, you haven't done any analysis.  You have made some estimates; is that right?


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  Yes.  It is a high-level estimate that underlies the 3.5 million.


MS. DeMARCO:  In fairness, that estimate pertains specifically to on‑bill financing costs, as well?


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  That's correct, yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  Who is EDMSI?


MR. McGILL:  That is an Enbridge Inc. subsidiary company.  It is called Enbridge Distribution Management Services Inc., if I've got it right.  


MS. DeMARCO:  What do they do?


MR. McGILL:  They are the utility management company that provides management services to what I believe is an embedded electricity distribution company that operates under the name of Wirebury.  


MS. DeMARCO:  So can I ask you to turn to CCC Number 192, which is found at tab 7 of my materials, and at page 9 of 73 there?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  Part of the memo is looking at the impact on EDMSI; is that right?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  So unrelated to Enbridge Gas Distribution?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  And moving on to page 17 of 73 ‑‑


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  ‑‑ there are a number of specific costs referred to there?


MR. McGILL:  Well, these were some of the reasons why it's important that we get on with the replacement of the current Enbridge CIS system.


MS. DeMARCO:  And these are all in relation to current costs associated with the CIS?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  And that's from EGD's perspective, or EI's perspective?

MR. McGILL:  Largely with respect to EGD's perspective.  The only point that is on that page with respect to EI is the reference to the change in receivable types, and that cost was borne by EI, not EGD.

     MS. DeMARCO:  And further on in the document, at pages 21 of 73 --

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  Those revenues there pertain to the cost associated -- or the benefits not going to EGD, but rather the cost to CWLP?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  This table summarizes the costs and

benefits associated with the program, as they were defined at the time this was done.  I would have to check the date.  As they would pertain to ECSI, the assumption at the time this was prepared was that ECSI would own the replacement CIS as opposed to CustomerWorks.

     MS. DeMARCO:  And further on page 22 of 73.

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  You're looking at, again, benefits there?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  This states some of the benefits that would be associated with replacement of the CIS.

     MS. DeMARCO:  And one of those benefits in the second bullet pertaining to Enbridge Gas Distribution is enhanced access to customer information?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  By EGD marketing and sales personnel?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  For EGD low growth and load-retention opportunities?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  So part of your responsibilities there would be accessing customer information and trying to market or sell to them?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Yes.

     MR. McGILL:  That's what our -- part of our business.

That's how we grow the business and retain load, it's critical to our business.

     MS. DeMARCO:  So it's your position, then, that marketing and sales falls within EGD's undertakings to the LGIC?

     MR. McGILL:  The marketing of gas distribution services, yes.  Then the promotion of natural gas as an energy form, yes.

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Yes.  On day 16 we had presented the opportunity development O&M budget, which is part of that mandate is market development to increase the penetration of natural gas appliances.

     So that is in relation here, marketing and sales, again it is to better understand our customers and our customers' needs, to again make natural gas appliances available to them.

     MS. DeMARCO:  So that would be part of walking down the aisle or dating, but not getting married?

     MR. McGILL:  Perhaps match making.

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Well, no, I don't think that analogy applies here directly.

     Marketing falls directly within the mandate of the gas utility, but, again, this is marketing of natural gas products, and natural-gas-burning appliances.

     So I'm not sure if that analogy really applies in the

context that it was used yesterday.

     MS. DeMARCO:  You would agree with me that bullet point doesn't specify specific to natural gas markets, products?

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  No.  It says EGD load growth and load retention opportunities.  So that is exactly what it refers to.

     MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, it doesn't say anywhere there “products”, does it?

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  No.  EGD load growth and load retention.  So load growth is increased natural gas through our pipeline.

     MS. DeMARCO:  But not specific to products at retail

outlets?

     MR. McGILL:  That would probably be the number one way to increase load growth.

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  That's how we do it.

     MR. McGILL:  To create load growth would be to having people convert more of their non-gas consuming appliances to gas-consuming appliances.

     MS. DeMARCO:  Just a few questions, again, tidying up the record in relation to this cost benefit analysis of adding additional third parties to the bill.

     Volume 27 of the transcript, page 16, starting at line 10, Mr. Hoaken refers to a --

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Sorry, page?

     MS. DeMARCO:  16.

     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Okay.

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  Mr. Hoaken refers to a formula for determining the benefits of cost sharing the bill.

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  Is it fair that that is a price, not a

formula?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  There are prices stated or fees stated in the client services agreement.  One with respect to shared bills and one with respect to EGD stand-alone bills.

     MS. DeMARCO:  So for every shared bill, there's a savings of 36 cents, as I understand it.

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  In the test year.

     MS. DeMARCO:  That's regardless of the revenue that's coming in.  That's regardless of the cost of CWLP.

     MR. McGILL:  It's regardless of the revenue and the cost of CWLP, yes.  That's their commitment to EGD.

     MS. DeMARCO:  So for example, if another party paid CWLP two cents --

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.

     MS. DeMARCO:  -- the cost savings would be the same?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  EGD would save 36 cents on that incremental shared bill.

     MS. DeMARCO:  If another party paid 65 cents, the cost savings would be the same?

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  EGD isn't in the business of providing billing services.  That's a competitive business.

     MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, I wonder if we can now go in camera, because I do want to ask a question about what has been produced and I have a document I would like to introduce that relates to Exhibit 29.1.

     --- In-camera session commences at 2:45 p.m.

[Note:  Page 57, line 2, to page 60, line 22, has been redacted]
--- In-camera session concluded at 2:50 p.m.


‑‑‑ Recess taken at 2:50 p.m.
     --- On resuming at 3:15 p.m.

PROCEDURAL MATTERS:
     MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  We are no longer in camera, because I they we may be able to deal with this matter.  If we need to go in camera again, we will.
     The Board Panel feels that there is one possible way to handle the dilemma we're in so we would like to make it as a suggestion and get suggestions from you.  That is that we delay any questioning on the new documents until some future time in the proceeding, when Mr. McGill can return.  We understand he is going to be on the GDAR and Entrac panels, so perhaps he could return adjacent to appearing in those panels to answer questions solely on those documents, if that's required.
     Then what I would like to do is, today, to finish this topic with that narrow exception and we will return to that topic for that exception.  So to go through Mr. Millar's questions, finish Ms. DeMarco's or Mr. Hoaken for cross, and re-cross if he would like, and Mr. Cass.  Then come back to it on the limited matter later.
     Any submissions on that?
     MR. SHEPHERD:  Madam Chair, I have a submission.  The Board will recall that we specifically - we, School Energy Coalition - specifically asked the company to bring a witness from CWLP or from EI or Accenture, wherever, who would be able to speak to the program agreement.  We asked them in writing in August.  We have already noted that on the record.  The company has declined to do so.
     Now, my understanding is they're saying that their witness is going to have some difficulty dealing with the program agreement which, by the way, he has already been extensively cross-examined on.
     I guess I'm concerned that if the problem is that we're now getting into things in the program agreement that are not within Mr. McGill's knowledge or area of influence, if you like, then can I refresh my request that the company bring somebody from CWLP who can answer questions on the program agreement?  Those are our submissions.
     MS. NOWINA:  Ms. DeMarco.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, my submissions are a bit more broad, and let me just start at the beginning, if I might.
     As properly part of the company's due diligence on this new 12-year three-month contract, costing about $79.4 million relating to CIS, the company, in its original evidence, introduced numbers relating to the value that would derive from the Direct Energy benefits.  Those numbers are found in the transcript at A6, tab 2, schedule 4, page 11 -- A6, tab 2, schedule 4, page 17, and all throughout the transcript.
     We've heard evidence that there is an assumed benefit, a financial benefit with the relationship from Direct Energy.
     I took a significant amount of the Board's time in very carefully qualifying Mr. McGill as a witness, who, in his capabilities, could speak to call centres, billing support, credits and collection, CIS, meter-reading and ABC.
     I also took a significant amount of the Board's time to very carefully establish that EGD's role and responsibilities include the -- all of these features, and establishing that the payments that CWLP are fairly apportioned among the parties.
     There was no hesitation, there were not objections at that point.  Clearly these matters deal specifically with each of those issues, both the specific elements of the customer-support functions and the allocation of payment, among CWLP's clients so to speak.
     So to now, at this point, with all of this evidence on the record, have an indication that Mr. McGill may not be willing to answer or able to answer those questions, I find quite troubling and I am absolutely more than willing to adhere to the process that the Board suggests and come back yet another day to speak to these matters on the understanding that Mr. McGill is willing to speak to these matters and we won't at that time face a challenge in Mr. Cass saying that his witness is unable to speak to these matters or Mr. McGill saying it's not within his competence to speak to these matters.  

So to the extent that we have that understanding on the record at this point, I'm more than willing to proceed as you suggest.
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Dingwall.
     MR. DINGWALL:  Very briefly, Madam Chair.
     This document provides something of a watershed in terms of information that enables us to flesh out many of the questions where, in the past, the answer has been "I don't know.  CWLP did it."
     And I agree with Mr. Shepherd's contention, that the best way to approach it is the way in which he suggested back in August which is for Mr. Cass to obtain, as I believe I heard him say he would like to do, someone from CWLP who would not be able to pass the buck in order to answer these questions.
     MS. NOWINA:  Other comments?
     MR. DeROSE:  Very briefly, Madam Chair.  On behalf of IGUA, we would accept what you've proposed.  We think it makes sense to have these questions addressed at a later time, when all parties have had an opportunity to organize their thoughts and provide an effective cross-examination. Although people can do it on the fly, so to speak, it's going to be a longer process which I think we can all appreciate is undesirable.
     And in terms of whether it should be Mr. McGill and someone from CWLP, I would just say this:  In our view it would be the person that can provide the best evidence, and if Mr. McGill finds that he is not in a position to provide the necessary answers, and I think it is fair to say that the company and Mr. McGill at this point can certainly anticipate the questions that are coming, then that person should be brought.
     If Mr. McGill is confident that he is in a position to answer all of the questions that can reasonably be anticipated, then we're in the Board's hands.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. DeRose.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, just before my friend Mr. Cass has a chance to speak, I omitted one fact.  That is there was one question as to the parties just having received the document.  I would like to note for the record each of us received the document at the exact amount of time.  There is no prejudice among the parties as to one receiving it earlier than others.
     MS. NOWINA:  Yes, I understand that, Ms. DeMarco.  

We were actually trying to consider the interests of all parties and the intervenors as well who had not seen the document.
     Before I go back to Mr. Cass, Mr. Hoaken, do you have an opinion on this?
     MR. HOAKEN:  I have no submissions.  Thank you.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Cass.
     MR. CASS:  Sorry, Madam Chair, just on that point about all parties receiving the document at the same time.  I had understood it was disclosed to intervenors yesterday.  I received it for the first time this morning -- sorry, this afternoon, when the submissions by Accenture and other parties were completed, I signed the undertaking that was handed to me.  As of the time this issue arose with Mr. McGill, I hadn't even cracked it open.
     MS. NOWINA:  Then you're in the same place the Board panel is, Mr. Cass.
     MR. CASS:  Yes.  Thank you Madam Chair. 
     Madam Chair, my understanding from the Board's ruling yesterday - and it seemed to be very clear - is that it's the Board's decision that it is relevant to enquire into the terms and conditions upon which other customers acquire services from one of Enbridge Gas Distribution's service providers.
     Madam Chair, it is absolutely essential that any such enquiry, if it's going to be on a basis that the Board can be able to rely on, be an apples-to-apples comparison.
     I have no idea whether Enbridge Gas Distribution is capable or anyone is capable of making an apples-to-apples comparison between what Direct Energy pays for service from CWLP, or what other customers pay for services from CWLP, and what Enbridge Gas Distribution pays.  But anything less, Madam Chair, would be completely inappropriate and highly prejudicial to Enbridge Gas Distribution.
     I need a chance to consult not only with Mr. McGill but with others to see what we can do to make sure that we can come as close as we can to some sort of  

apples-to-apples comparison.  It's as simple as that.  I don't know whether we can do it, but I haven't even had a chance to consult with anybody to see how close we can come to it.  
     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Cass, I'm not sure whether that was an acceptance of my proposition or an alternative proposition.
     MR. CASS:  Madam Chair, it is certainly an acceptance of the fact that we would come back to this issue later.  As to whether it is Mr. McGill, Mr. McGill and other people, or whether it doesn't include Mr. McGill at all I simply don't know at this time.  I have no idea how Enbridge Gas Distribution is going to enable the Board to make an apples-to-apples comparison of what these customers pay, particularly in the test year 2006.

So, yes, it was an acceptance of your proposition, Madam Chair, with the caveat that I don't know who the witnesses will be.


MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, if I can just address that, we have asked for a series of undertakings that would allow us to have all of the information in front of us in order to make that apples-to-apples comparison:  The undertaking in relation to production of the EI undertakings; the undertaking in relation to the notice to establish exactly what we've got; and the undertaking that Mr. Dingwall asked for in relation to the actual agreement.


MS. NOWINA:  Ms. DeMarco, I want to talk about the proposition about how we address the documents and how people question them, not the nature of their questioning, what the types of questions will be or how the ‑‑ how Enbridge will respond to them.  Mr. Sommerville.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  We could proceed with undertaking after undertaking after undertaking, and find ourselves in a web of undertakings, and then having to come, presumably -- perhaps having to come back for further questions on the undertaking.


The only complication that I see is that witnesses are typically not permitted to consult with counsel once under cross‑examination.  In order for this process to be effective, that prohibition, for this limited purpose, would have to be relaxed.


MR. DINGWALL:  Just very briefly following on what you have said, Mr. Sommerville.


I would also foresee that there might be some value to the process in Mr. Cass giving notice to us either on-line or off-line of what additional information he thinks might flesh out what are apples and what are not, and what we might need in advance, so that we're not coming back for undertakings after undertakings.


It may be, given the parameters of relevance that we're addressing, that we can address that and have enough information in advance that we're not wasting the Board's time with further scheduling problems seeking more things.


MS. NOWINA:  If you can work that out between you, that would be excellent.


Can I conclude, then, that we will be continuing with this very narrow matter ‑‑ perhaps the way to get around Mr. Sommerville's concern about the panel not being able to speak to counsel is that we define it as a sub-issue or give it another name with a new panel constituted to deal with these documents, we finish this issue on the information we have had previous to today, and resume in that manner.


Madam, the only thing I would like to add to that is that the Board Panel feels that Mr. McGill should be on that panel.  We certainly understand if you need additions to Mr. McGill, but we have heard ‑ and with my sympathy to Mr. McGill --


MR. McGILL:  I can't get out of this.


MS. NOWINA:  He clearly is so knowledgeable about the topic and can provide the continuity that would greatly assist with that panel, that we would appreciate it if he could be on that witness panel.


MS. DeMARCO:  You anticipated my question.


MR. SHEPHERD:  Madam Chair, before Ms. DeMarco continues, I wonder if I could raise a minor procedural matter.  In anticipation of dealing with 101A of the program agreement, either in argument today or through Ms. DeMarco's cross‑examination or myself later, we, in fact, distributed an extract of some confidential numbers from that document to the Board Staff and some of the parties who were arguing the motion, anticipating that it would be filed as an exhibit today.  


We would therefore like to put on the record, because some of those parties are not here, that because it's not being put on the record today or not being put on the record in confidence today, that it would be appropriate for those parties to return that document or at least maintain it in confidence until it is put on the record later.


MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, I wonder if we can just avoid that challenge and just have the document put on the record today to be spoken to at a later date.


MS. NOWINA:  Does that work for everyone?  All right, let's do that.


MR. BATTISTA:  The document will be identified as X29.2, and it will be described as comparison of cost per customer, extracted from ‑‑


MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, because it is a confidential document, I think we are on air, so, Madam Chair, I am not sure whether the title of the document appropriately goes on the record if it's a confidential document, in fairness to the applicant.


MS. NOWINA:  X29.2.  I think we do need to -- so we can find it again.


MR. BATTISTA:  Yes.  Comparison of costs per customer.


MS. NOWINA:  That's probably enough.  Thank you.

EXHIBIT NO. X29.2:  ONE-PAGE DOCUMENT ENTITLED "COMPARISON OF COSTS PER CUSTOMER"

MS. NOWINA:  Ms. DeMarco, we have broken up your cross‑examination so badly through this process, I apologize, but it would be great if we could finish it this afternoon, so if you could continue.


MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, I just want to get a couple of clarifications on the record, just noting that the balance of my cross‑examination that would be for this panel will be continued at a time and on the date that the Board decides upon for "new panel"?


MS. NOWINA:  Correct.

ENBRIDGE GAS DISTRIBUTION INC. PANEL 20; RESUMED:


KERRY LAKATOS-HAYWARD; Previously Sworn


STEPHEN MCGILL; Previously Sworn

CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. DeMARCO:

MS. DeMARCO:  I will have to apologize for being a bit choppy here, because ‑‑ I will just touch upon the key points in the record.


Mr. McGill, Ms. Lakatos‑Hayward, again, with apologies to you and with an appreciation for your patience in this regard, page 22 of the transcript, volume 27.  Do you have that?


MR. McGILL:  We have the page.


MS. DeMARCO:  Line 14, Mr. Hoaken asks:  

"Then turning back to the economic side of it, then, these commercial arrangements to bring a third party onto the bill would have to do two things, I would suggest.  It would have to ensure that the cost savings that are presently being accomplished are at least as favourable, first of all; correct?


Have I got that right?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  Subject to check, is it fair to say that Direct Energy did not have to go through any such analysis?


MR. McGILL:  I think that analysis was done initially when ECSI provided the customer care services to ESI, when the businesses that were rolled out of Enbridge Gas Distribution were transferred to ESI.


So there would have been work of that nature done at that point in time to support the business case for the creation of ECSI.


MS. DeMARCO:  So let me understand that.  Direct Energy had to go through an economic feasibility analysis to ensure that the cost savings were at least as favourable as its own cost savings?


MR. McGILL:  No.  What I said was that -- that the creation of ECSI, back in late 1999, was premised on a business case for providing customer care services on a shared basis to Enbridge Gas Distribution and what was to become Enbridge Services Inc.  That was all part of unbundling the competitive retail businesses from the regulated utility, as the ‑‑ as Consumers Gas was at the time.


So there would have been a business case at that point in time.  I presume that when CWLP entered into a new contract with ESI, prior to Direct Energy's acquisition of ESI there would have been some business case done by CWLP then, and then subsequent events took place.  ECSI was sold to Direct, and CWLP entered into the program agreement with Accenture.  


So I think all of the way through, the businesses would have been supported by business cases that would have been prepared by the parties involved, and both parties would have had to have been satisfied that the arrangements they entered into were in their mutual best interests.


MS. DeMARCO:  So it had to undergo a business-case analysis, but it did not have to establish that it was at least as favourable as it was in the relationship with ‑‑

     MR. McGILL:  I don't know.  I can't speak to what the parameters for the acceptance of a business case would be at Direct Energy.  I don't work for them.  I never have.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Fair to say that prior to a third party having access to the bill, there's no one to compare to; is that fair?
     MR. McGILL:  I think there are lots of things to compare to.  There's lots of different ways of conveying a bill.  One can go to the banks.  One can go to the credit card companies.  There are other service providers that can do it.  One can issue their own bills and look at their internal costs.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Right.  Now, let me emphasize my language.  There is no “one” to compare to; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  No “what” to compare to.  I guess that's the problem I'm having request your question.
     MS. DeMARCO:  No other third party to compare to.  There's no one on the bill prior to that.
     MR. McGILL:  No one else on the Enbridge bill?
     MS. DeMARCO:  Prior to that.
     MR. McGILL:  Prior to when?  Prior to the unbundling of the old competitive businesses?
     MS. DeMARCO:  Prior to the ESI/Direct establishment.  Anyone new, as I understand your answer?
     MR. McGILL:  Well there was ESI before Direct acquired ESI.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So that's the exact same business that Direct has; is that right?
     MR. McGILL:  At the time the business was transferred, I believe it was.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So Direct didn't have to establish that the cost savings were at least as favourable as they were prior to that?
     MR. McGILL:  Again, I don't know what Direct's considerations were in terms of its acquisition of ESI and those businesses.  I can't speak to that.  I wasn't party to those discussions or that negotiation.
     Direct must have –- Direct -- Centrica, their parent, must have found that overall, the arrangement they were entering into was their best interest, or presumably they never would have acquired the business.  
     MS. DeMARCO:  You're talking about general savings.
     MR. McGILL:  Well, I'm talking about the entire acquisition of ESI and the merchandise finance plan from ECSI.  I think it was a billion-dollar transaction to purchase those businesses, the rental business.  There would have been numerous considerations on the part of the Enbridge companies involved, and Direct Energy with respect to what they saw as value in that arrangement; what they were prepared to pay for those companies; and there would have been a multitude of things that would have been considered.  And one of them would have been the ongoing costs of those businesses going forward, and to some extent those costs are -- pertain to customer-care services that ECSI had contracted for with CWLP prior to the sale of the business.
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  I think the proposition is perhaps a little bit more simple than what Mr. McGill went on in the transcript to talk about is that:  The addition of further parties on the bill -- really the case is if a business case can be put in place that would support the recovery of the initial investment over the reasonable period of time, then that really is the parameters in which to -- the decision-making parameters.
     So that, to me, would suggest a reasonable course of action, that there is a business case in place and that you can recover an investment, the initial investment.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So is it fair to say here there is an assumed cost savings associated with Direct.  Yes?
     MR. McGILL:  I still don't know how that relates to a going-forward business case for CWLP to make an investment in creating the capability to add parties to the Enbridge bill.  It's going to have to be looked at on an incremental basis.  That's the way all investments are looked at in a going concern.
     That's sort of basic cost accounting.  You're taught that in cost accounting 101.
     So you wouldn't -- CWLP wouldn't be in an economic position to go ahead with this, unless they were comfortable that there would be sufficient revenues coming from the service to recover the costs and provide them with some return.  That's all we're trying to say, is that the proposition has to make sense for all of the parties involved.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So just so we're clear here, we've got a cost benefit analysis going on with the first entity, ESI/Direct Energy that was added to the bill.

MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Then we have an incremental cost analysis associated with any subsequent parties.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I presume that, as -- especially if it CWLP finds itself in a position where it needs to make a $3.5 million plus investment, it's going to want to have reasonable assurances that there's going to be a 

going-forward revenue stream that enables it to recover that investment over some reasonable period of time, or the forecast life of the asset that they create.
     MS. DeMARCO:  As part of the incremental analysis, there will be a comparison to the cost savings assumed from Direct right now; is that correct?
     MR. McGILL:  I don't think so, no, because whatever CWLP has in its arrangement with Direct now isn't impacted by adding another party to the bill.
     MS. DeMARCO:  I'm sorry, just looking at the transcript, you appear to indicate that it would have to ensure that the cost savings that are presently being accomplished are at least as favourable, first of all.  Your answer is "yes".
     So it appears as though there is some relative analysis; is that fair?
     MR. McGILL:  Just let me read this page.  And perhaps, when I answered Mr. Hoaken's question, I was thinking of something else, in that I was talking about recovery of the investment to create the incremental capability.  He may have been enquiring with respect to the impact on EGD with respect to sharing more bills.  And from EGD's standpoint, I indicated earlier, I don't think there is a need for EGD to create a business case.
     The contract that we have provides for an economic benefit to flow to EGD if there are more shared bills.  And there is no cost to EGD to create that incremental capability.  That would all be done outside of EGD.
     So the business case needs to be done outside of EGD by the party that would be making that investment.  That's what I said earlier.
     Now, it's in EGD's best interest to have more shared bills for a number of reasons, one of which is that to some extent there would be an additional economic benefit associated with more shared bills under the client services agreement we have with CWLP.  
     MS. DeMARCO:  So the first party to the pin, ECSI/Direct Energy, had to do that economic analysis, had to do that cost-benefit analysis.  Then every subsequent party to the pin has to do that cost-benefit analysis as well as a relative-savings analysis; is that fair?
     MR. McGILL:  Well, I don't think there is a 

relative-savings analysis required.  I think, in any commercial entity, whether it's government, private industry, in most cases a company, an organization, isn't going to go ahead and make an investment unless they know 

-- or they have some degree of comfort that they're going to be able to recover that investment.
     It would be irresponsible for them to do anything otherwise.  Like, why would one make an investment of $3 million or $4 million on spec, basically?  That's what you're saying, is that this party would go out, they would create the capability and have no idea what revenues they might attain from it.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Actually, Mr. McGill, I'm speaking about the relative analysis, the relative-savings analysis --
     MR. McGILL:  Well, the savings to EGD --
     MS. DeMARCO: -- specifically and that was not required.
     MR. McGILL:  There is no relative savings in EGD.  If there are more shared bills, there is a reduced cost.
     MS. DeMARCO:  So we'll get into that when we actually get into the specific confidential analysis.
     MR. McGILL:  Well, we may or may not.  I don't know what material is in there from the brief time I've had to look at them, that might help with that.  But we can talk about it.
     MS. DeMARCO:  We understand.  You'll be present with the panel.
     MR. McGILL:  It appears so.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Who will certainly be able to.
     Let's talk about specifically those capital costs.  Moving down along that page in the transcript, Mr. Hoaken specifically asks you about recovery of the capital costs with the new CIS.  And you talk about a recovery period of two years, five years, and then in your answer on page 23 of the transcript, at line 3 you indicate that you think you would be looking ‑‑ we or whoever spend it - it would probably be CWLP - would have to recover it in one year.


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  Is that fair?  You said that?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. DeMARCO:  Can I ask you, was a one-year recovery period imposed upon Direct?


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  No, because they're quite different circumstances.  We're talking about making an investment to an asset that we know is going to be retired in 2008, hopefully, if we get the acceptance by the Board.


So, again, it becomes a business-case decision that has no precedent from a history.  It is just looking at the transaction on its own merits to say, Does it make sense to take 3-1/2-million dollars and spend it on an asset that is going to be retired in a year?  Is this a prudent thing to do?  Can we expect to generate a reasonable amount of revenue in the future?


In my submission, it's as simple as that.  There is no historical precedent.


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  If there was only one incremental bill, then the cost of that incremental bill would be at least 3-1/2-million dollars, and I don't think you would find a client that would pay that.


MS. DeMARCO:  So is it fair to say, then, that it looks like Direct really benefited from getting in on that exclusivity agreement early on in the age of the CIS process?  


MR. McGILL:  Well, Direct may or may not have benefited by making a $1 billion investment in the acquisition of a business as a going concern.


MS. DeMARCO:  Those are my questions.  Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Ms. DeMarco.  

Mr. Millar.


CROSS‑EXAMINATION BY MR. MILLAR:

MR. MILLAR:  Yes.  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I don't think I'll have too much difficulty finishing before 4 o'clock today.  Mr. McGill, I believe you probably still have the transcript from volume 27 before you; is that right?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  Could you please turn to page 140?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, we have the page.


MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  I'm reading from a response from you to a question from Mr. Dingwall starting at line 14.  You say:  

"I think that kind of ruling would have to be carefully weighed, in that it effectively overturns at least two prior Board decisions, yet it would overturn what the Board had to say in 179‑14/15 and also what it has to say in its decision on the HVAC complaint in 2000.  In that decision, the Board ruled that billing wasn't a regulated service."


Just as a point of clarification, when you say "in that decision", were you referring to one of those two cases in particular, or was it both of them?


MR. McGILL:  Well, specifically it would be the HVAC decision, and I can actually -- I can give you a page reference.  Unfortunately, I don't think I have the docket number.


[Witness panel confers]


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  It's RP-1999‑0058.


MR. McGILL:  It's on page ‑‑ well, the discussion of the gas bill is on page 50.  Just give me a moment.


Yes, it's in the findings on page 50, paragraph 4.7.12.  I can read it into the record, if you'd like.


MR. MILLAR:  Sorry, that was 4.7.12?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  No.  If you wish to read it, that's fine.  I would -- don't -- I'll leave it to you.  I don't want to shut you down.


MR. McGILL:  Nothing turns on whether I read it into the record or not.  You can read it as well as I can.


MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  I have provided a case to your counsel that I am going to be discussing.  Did he provide it to you?  We have copies here.


MR. McGILL:  No.  We haven't seen this.


MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  I will be asking to have it entered as an exhibit.  It is a case ‑‑ it's a Court of Appeal decision from this year -- or, actually, it might have been the end of last year, entitled "Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc. and the Ontario Energy Board."


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  Could we have an exhibit number, please, Mr. Battista?


MR. BATTISTA:  That will be Exhibit No. K29.1, and it will be described as EGDI and OEB Court of Appeal decision.

EXHIBIT NO. K29.1:  EGDI AND OEB COURT OF APPEAL DECISION

MR. MILLAR:  Mr. McGill, are you familiar with this decision?  Have you reviewed it before?


MR. McGILL:  I reviewed it some time ago.


MR. MILLAR:  Probably when it was released?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  Were you involved in that case at all?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, I did provide a lot of the materials that were used in evidence, and had discussions with the company's counsel that represented the company in that matter.


MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So you have some familiarity with the case?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, I do.


MR. MILLAR:  For the purpose of completeness of the record, I will describe very generally what the case is about, and you can please feel free to disagree with me if you think I have mischaracterized it, but it was an appeal of certain provisions of GDAR, which is the Gas Distribution Access Rule, and specifically with regard to the customer billing provisions that appear in GDAR.


GDAR provides customers with three billing options when they make use of a gas vendor, and these are described at page 8 of the decision.  They're -- the three options are gas distributor, consolidated billing -- and I heard you refer to that earlier in today's testimony?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  There's split billing, and a third option is gas vendor consolidated billing.  


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  And the appeal, or one of the grounds for the appeal, was the question of whether or not the Board had the jurisdiction to pass this part of the rule?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  And the court ultimately found that the Board did have that jurisdiction?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  And I think in fairness to you, Mr. McGill, I'm going to read a couple of sections from this decision.  This issue did relate to GDAR.  It wasn't a rates case, so your counsel may choose to argue later that this doesn't apply, or something like that, and that's fine.  But just in fairness to you, I wanted to present a couple of passages to you to see if you had any thoughts.


I'm looking first at paragraph 29 of the decision, which is on page 14.


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  It reads:   

"The contested provisions of the GDAR apply to the billing arrangements used by gas distributors to charge their customers for transporting their gas supply to them."


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  "How gas distributors get paid by their

customers for the gas distribution service provided is obviously an important part of the gas distribution business."

     MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  Do you see that?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, I see that.


MR. MILLAR:  Then if you flip to the next page, page 15, paragraph 31 --


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  ‑‑ I will read the full paragraph, though really it is just the final three sentences I am most interested in.  It reads, "Thus" ‑‑ and this is the decision from Mr. Justice Goudge:

"Thus, in my view, the words of section 44(1)(b) read in their grammatical and ordinary sense, confer ample jurisdiction on the Board to make the billing provisions of the GDAR.  Moreover, such a reading is harmonious with the scheme and object of the Act and the intention of the legislature.  The exercise of jurisdiction by the Board in making these provisions regulates an important part of the gas distribution business.  This constitutes a manifestation of one of the fundamental purposes of the Act, namely, the regulation by the Board of gas distribution in Ontario."


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MR. MILLAR:  Mr. McGill, when you read those two paragraphs, I'm just wondering if you have any comment if that in any way alters your view from the transcript that I just read to you, or if you would like to comment in any way on those provisions?


MR. McGILL:  No.  I think the statement in paragraph 29 specifically references to billing arrangements used by gas distributors to charge their customers for transporting their gas supply to, and then the references in paragraph 31, with respect to GDAR being harmonious with the scheme and object of the Act and intention of the legislature, that intent, in my reading of it, is specific to the sale of natural gas.  


It's got nothing to do with the sale of natural gas appliances, or the service of them.


MR. MILLAR:  Thank you, Mr. McGill.  Just one final question.  I think you might have answered this before, but I just want to make sure I have it correct.


Do you agree that a distributor must ensure that any service provider, regardless of whether or not they're an affiliate or a third party ‑‑ that they comply with the distributors' regulatory provisions; would you agree with that?  When I say a service provider, I mean providing a service to the utility.


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I would agree that service providers to the utility shouldn't and can't be in a position to put the utility offside its regulatory requirements.


MR. MILLAR:  Thank you, those are my questions.

     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.
     Mr. Hoaken, I had said when we started this that I would give you an opportunity for re-cross if you required it.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I appreciate that.  I have no further questions though.  Thank you.
     Thank you, Mr. Hoaken.  

Mr. Cass, go ahead.
     MR. CASS:  Madam Chair, actually I have no 

re-examination.  Thank you.
     MS. NOWINA:  We're going to be finished by 4 o'clock.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Oh, okay.
     MS. NOWINA:  It's all on your shoulders, Ms. Chaplin.  No pressure on her. 

QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Sorry.
     Mr. McGill I have a few questions in a variety of areas so there is no particular order, just as they come up in my stickies.
     As I understand your testimony, kind of the bottom line is that Enbridge Gas Distribution supports the policy of access to the Enbridge bill, but can only facilitate that development, but can't actually control it.  Would that be a correct characterization?
     MR. McGILL:  I think Enbridge Gas Distribution is in a position to facilitate that access, and have some influence over it.
     What we have say been saying is that Enbridge Gas Distribution isn't in a position to actually do it.  So I think, perhaps some of the differences we have with some the parties here is not so much over the "what" but over the "how".  Enbridge Gas Distribution clearly sees the further sharing of the Enbridge bill as a positive thing.
     And Enbridge Gas Distribution is prepared to take steps to help make that happen.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Along those lines, would I be correct in concluding that essentially that bill cannot be shared unless Enbridge Gas Distribution permits it.  And I put that proposition to you on the basis that in order to share that bill, they have to use Enbridge Gas Distribution data, i.e., the customer name and address to match it up.  Would that be --
     MR. McGILL:  Well, to the extent the customer is common to both Enbridge Gas Distribution and another party, I think there would be a segment of customer information that would arguably be -- I don't know if "property" is the right word, of all of the billing entities that deal with that customer.
     Now, if it's information pertaining to a customer that is specific to the services that Enbridge Gas Distribution provides, clearly, to me, and the company, those other parties that are or may share the Enbridge bill shouldn't be privy to that.  So there needs to be a clear physical distinction of that information.  And controls with respect to access to that.
     So I don't think it would be proper for another party on the Enbridge bill that has no dealings with a customer in terms of gas commodity to know anything about that gas customer's consumption or rates they pay or who their supplier happens to be.
     On the other hand, I don't think it would be proper for Enbridge Gas Distribution to know how many times that customer has maybe had its rental hot water tank fixed in the last five years.  But with respect to common information that all of the billing entities would require to do business with the customer, then all those entities should have access to that.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  That's helpful.  But that's not quite what I'm getting at.  Maybe I will -- I will try one more time.  Let's say you have a customer.
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Me.  Say just for -- and I also happen to be a customer of another service provider.  I am imagining that although both of those entities have my information, that Enbridge Gas Distribution could say to CWLP, No, we will not allow you to match up that data to issue a shared bill, because in a sense, my understanding is you would have to provide your consent that the data that you control and own -- would match up.
     MR. McGILL:  But I think in that analogy, the other service provider would also know who you are.  If they're already doing business with you, they would know who you are.  They would probably know where you live, your contact information.  They would have some record with respect to what business they had already done with you.  And they would be bringing that information to CWLP to add to the database.
     And to the extent that some of that information is specific to the products and services that that third party provides to you, Enbridge Gas Distribution shouldn't and  wouldn't be able to gain access to it.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  I understand that.  What I'm trying to get at --
     MR. McGILL:  So there would be no provision of customer information by Enbridge Gas Distribution to CWLP for the purposes of adding a party to the bill.  That information would have to come from the new billing party.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Right.  But CWLP goes through the practical activity of combining those two, does it not?
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.  And to some extent, the customers would be mutual.  And to some extent, they may not be.
     Even today, CWLP provides billing to Direct Energy with respect to customers that are outside of the Enbridge Gas Distribution franchise.  And EGD has no access to that information with respect to those customers.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Right.
     MR. McGILL:  That's information that Direct brings to CWLP.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Right.  But I'm particularly just interested on the side that -- the EGD side.  Its data, its information and the control it has of that.
     As I understand your description, although you own your customer data -- in effect CWLP controls it, in a sense that, as you seem to be describing it, that they have the authority, if somebody else were to come along with a matching customer, they could put those two together to issue a bill.
     They wouldn't have to seek EGD 's permission for that matching to take place.
     MR. McGILL:  I don't believe they would under the terms of the contract we have now.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay.  Thank you.
     MR. McGILL:  But EI would have to grant CWLP permission to use the Enbridge bill for that party.  So there is a level of control within the organization with respect to that access.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay.  Just following on from that.  As been described, this is an EI bill.  What makes it an EI bill?  Is it because ECSI owns the billing system?  Like, why is it an EI bill?
     MR. McGILL:  Well, it's a difficult question to answer.  The bill contains the charges right now of Enbridge Gas Distribution, and Direct Energy.  It is produced on behalf of those two entities by CWLP.  And CWLP has been granted the right to use the Enbridge trademarks on that document with respect to the provision of billing services to those two entities.
     So EI doesn't own any of the receivables on the bill directly, apart from its ownership interest in Enbridge Gas Distribution.
     So I think the receivables are owned by each of the parties represented on the bill, the branding of the bill is owned by Enbridge Inc.  And that's, I think, the best way I can describe it.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  In your direct testimony and a couple of times in your cross-examination, there was passing reference -- I mean there was direct reference to the $3.5 million estimate for --
     MR. McGILL:  Yes.
     MS. CHAPLIN:  -- for making the alterations to the existing CIS system.  But there was also reference to potential interim solutions that you were pursuing.  Are you in a position to give us any information as to what those might be?
     MR. McGILL:  Do you want to answer that?
     MS. LAKATOS-HAYWARD:  Certainly.  One of the avenues that we are exploring is working with a third-party financing company to offer a third-party brand -- or it would be an Enbridge-branded financing offer.  But they would provide all of the back office support, a separate bill would be produced for those customers.
     So in that scenario, if a customer chose to finance a piece of natural gas equipment under that arrangement, the financing company would fund that transaction and that the customer would receive a separate bill from that entity. 

It would be branded as Enbridge.  There could be specific bill messages that are customized to Enbridge so that it would look like an Enbridge bill, but, however, it would be separate from the current Enbridge bill that is received today.  So the customer would receive two bills.


So that is an interim solution that we are looking at.  It certainly would be lower cost to implement, and we are in discussion with third-party financing companies to see if this makes sense moving forward.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Could I ask you, Mr. McGill, to turn in the transcript ‑‑ I'm looking at volume 27, page 90.


Just at the bottom of page 89, Mr. Dingwall asks you a question about -- that the bill insert would have to only take place once there was a relationship between the customer and the entity.


Then you say -- that's in the case of Direct Energy.  You say:

"What I said earlier is that I don't know that that would need to be the case going forward.  I think that is something that could be discussed and negotiated."


Now, how I interpreted that at the time was to mean, perhaps, that you would be providing access to your bill, for the purposes of inserts, for parties who might not yet have a relationship with customers.


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I think to some extent we've already done that.


I can provide you with examples in our Pipeline newsletter where we've provided customers with a reference to the HRIC phone numbers and web sites where they can get information about other HVAC product vendors and services.


So that's very limited.  We don't name those vendors specifically, but we do provide that information to customers so that they can approach the marketplace and shop for those kinds of products and services.


So to the extent that it's in the utility's best interest to get more gas equipment into the marketplace, we would be prepared to do that.  And in the past we have also ‑‑ I can remember back, late '90s, when Direct purchased ‑‑ it was a bigger issue.  I guess it is still a big issue, but the nature of the issue was different, and we provided a list of all the ‑ they weren't even licensed at that time - all the gas marketers in the franchise area in a bill insert.  


So it has been done before, and I don't see any reason why we wouldn't entertain that in the future, if it ‑‑ if we can do it in a way that is acceptable to the company and makes sense.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Would it be fair to conclude that in the absence of a specific service provider customer relationship, that those inserts would either have to be of the sort of generic nature you've described the HRIC - or whatever the acronym is, sorry - or ones in which all of the potential providers were listed?


MR. McGILL:  We would have to offer it on the same basis to all of those entities.  That would be our goal and the way that we would see that we would have to do it.  That's the way we would want to do it.


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  Certainly our business interest going forward is to have an industry‑inclusive model and to be able to provide customers with many options and make them aware of that.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Just, finally, have the undertakings to the LGIC been filed yet?


MR. McGILL:  I don't know that they're an exhibit.  I provided a copy to Mr. Millar a day or two ago, and then we've had some follow‑up discussions internally to see if there are other documents that should be added to that.


MS. CHAPLIN:  I didn't mean to put Mr. Millar in a difficult spot, but I can just, I think, ask my question without going into that.


MR. McGILL:  I didn't either, but...

     MS. CHAPLIN:  You have referred to the fact that Enbridge Gas Distribution, or some entity, had exemptions for the purposes of system gas and another one that escapes me at the moment.


MR. McGILL:  Agent billing and collection.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Agent billing and collection.  Thank you.  Can you provide us with information as to how you went about getting those exemptions and who provided them?


MR. McGILL:  Both of those exemptions were granted and incorporated in connection with rate applications, so I would have to go back and get the specific references with respect to that.


MS. CHAPLIN:  They were Board-granted exemptions?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  That's sufficient for my purposes.


Thank you very much.  Those are my questions.


MS. NOWINA:  I have one question, or a series of questions, but it shouldn't take long, Mr. McGill.


Do you believe that Enbridge Gas Distribution is positively viewed by its customers, in terms of stability, business ‑‑ and business integrity?


MR. McGILL:  Yes.  I believe that to be the case.


MS. NOWINA:  Do you believe that part of that reputation is due to the fact that it is a regulated monopoly?


MR. McGILL:  I wouldn't agree with that statement.  I think the way the company is viewed ‑‑ I think if you went out on the street and asked most people whether or not they knew Enbridge Gas Distribution was regulated or not, they wouldn't know what you were talking about.  They would be saying, What does "regulated" mean?  


I think they probably know that we've been around for a long, long time.  Many of them probably remember the company as the Consumers Gas Company, and I think it is that longevity in the marketplace and the company's long‑term commitment to its customers that have put it in that position.


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  If I could perhaps add?


MS. NOWINA:  Certainly.


MS. LAKATOS‑HAYWARD:  In terms of attributes that our customers reference Enbridge ‑ and this is from corporate reputation studies and other similar studies – “trusted” and “reliable” and “quality” and “service” are some of the ways that our customers characterize Enbridge.  


So I would agree with Mr. McGill that it is not necessarily ‑‑ they wouldn't necessarily infer that we're regulated or a monopoly, but they're looking at us as a service provider, just as they look at service providers for other utilities.


Now, electric certainly is regulated.  Cable and television are regulated by other entities.  But they typically -- when we asked them, How do we benchmark compared to those, typically we are, you know, ahead of the pack and certainly very next to electricity.  


So our customers' view us very well, but would reference us against those types of services.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, I agree.  I think the reference to the reputation of the Consumers Gas is an apt one. 


So would you agree, then, there is a value to third parties to be associated with Enbridge Gas Distribution?


MR. McGILL:  I think some parties may perceive there to be a value, yes.


MS. NOWINA:  Do you think that there is a value?


MR. McGILL:  Depending on what type of business those parties were in, yes, they ‑‑ there probably would be.


MS. NOWINA:  Do you think that companies like Direct Energy and their competitors might be companies that would believe that there was a value to that association?


MR. McGILL:  Yes, I do.


MS. NOWINA:  Then my last question is:  Do you think that 50-percent discount on the cost of each bill represents a fair amount for that value?


MR. McGILL:  Well, when it comes to the value of Enbridge as a brand, there are different views on that.  With respect to the sharing of the bill, I think that's very good value.


I think there is definitely a question, though, with respect to what parties should be entitled to whatever brand equity a corporation has.


When IPL acquired Consumers Gas in 1994 or 1995, there was a significant premium paid in goodwill that EI does not earn on.  It's not included in the company's rate base.  There is a significant investment in the goodwill of the company.  They paid for it.  They don't earn anything on it through the company's regulated rates.  And I think it is fair that, as the owner of that brand, they have the opportunity to derive some earnings from it, outside of the regulated business.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Those are my questions.

     MR. CASS:  Sorry, Madam Chair, I did have one quick follow up question arising from Ms. Chaplin's questions; it is really only one.
     RE-EXAMINATION BY MR. CASS:
     MR. CASS:  Mr. McGill, in response to one of Ms. Chaplin's questions, you made a statement that you probably made other times during the cross-examination about it being in the utility's best interests to get more gas equipment into the marketplace.
     What best interests are you referring to there?
     MR. McGILL:  I'm referring to load growth and load retention.  It's good for the owner of the business, in terms of increasing revenues and overall earnings and it's good for the customer base by virtue of the fact that it enables the company to spread its fixed costs over higher through-put.
     MR. CASS:  That was all, Madam Chair.  Thank you.
     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Cass.

PROCEDURAL MATTERS:
     MS. NOWINA:  Before we adjourn for today, I have forgotten who our next panel up is.  So maybe you can remind me.
     MR. CASS:  It's DSM, Madam Chair, and Mr. O'Leary will be responsible for that panel on behalf of the company.
     MS. NOWINA:  All right.  So we will return at 9 o'clock tomorrow morning.  This panel is excused, but we will see Mr. McGill over and over again, I assume.
     MR. McGILL:  Not 9 o'clock tomorrow morning.
     MS. NOWINA:  Not 9 o'clock tomorrow morning.  You have a few days off.

MS. DeMARCO:  Madam Chair, one procedural matter.
     I note that my next appearance is likely in relation to the new panel.  I wonder if Mr. Battista could include that, the scheduling of that panel, in his series of very helpful e-mails that go out every night.
     MS. NOWINA:  As soon as that is clarified, I'm certain he will.
     MS. DeMARCO:  Thank you, Madam Chair.
     --- Whereupon hearing adjourned at 4:20 p.m.
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